Minutes of the May 20, 2013 Board of Selectmen Meeting

Present: Bill Hall, Carl Russell, Joe De Freitas, Delbert Cloud , Abbie Sherman, Tim Mills,
Geneva Gaiko, Mary Floyd, Sandra Ford, Fay Ford, and Jennie Marx for “The Herald of
Randolph.”

Chairman Bill Hall called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. He opened the meeting for public
comments. Sandra Ford asked Town Manager Delbert Cloud to clarify certain points in the April
8, 2013 minutes regarding Bridge #49. Cloud clarified that though the bridge itself was in Bethel,
part of the work of the alternate project would be in Barnard (the interchange). FEMA had
initially stated that work outside of Bethel would not be eligible as an alternate project for the
Town. Cloud reported that after he discussed the situation with FEMA they had agreed that in
this case the work would be eligible; FEMA suggested that the two towns draft an agreement to
this effect. Sandra Ford also asked about the cellular tower in Bethel. Cloud reported that it is up
and running, but that there is only one carrier associated with it at this point (AT&T), and that
the signal is limited by certain geographic features (such as hills); therefore, not everyone in
Bethel has seen an increase in cell coverage.

Moving into Reports, Motions, and Ordinances, the Board discussed Cloud’s draft of the duties
of the Cemetery Commissioner. Selectboard member Carl Russell made a motion to accept it as
written; Selectboard member Joe De Freitas seconded, and Hall concurred. The motion thus
carried. After discussion of the different types of duties associated with this position (ongoing
maintenance vs. specific projects), the Board and Cloud agreed it would be feasible to have more
than one person fill this role. Russell made a motion to appoint Cecil Washburn as Cemetery
Commissioner; Hall concurred. Russell then made a motion to appoint Linda Noyes as an
additional Cemetery Commissioner, with the specific division of duties to be determined with
Cloud. De Freitas seconded and Hall concurred.

Next the Board discussed the reconstitution of the Conservation Commission. Hall reported he
confirmed with Jim Barlow that any action taken at Town Meeting is in effect until an action is
taken to change it. Therefore, the 1986 Town Meeting vote creating the Conservation
Commission is still valid. The Board agreed to proceed, calling for written letters of interest from
potential appointees. They hope to have some candidates to consider at the next meeting.

Pertaining to the restructure of the Bethel/Royalton Solid Waste Program, Cloud presented the
draft he had written. Cloud noted that no action could be taken on it tonight as it is a matter for
the Joint Board Meeting with Royalton on May 22, 2013. The Board expressed their agreement
with the changes laid out in the draft. Providing Royalton agrees, the transition to the new
structure could begin.

In Irene recovery issues requiring Board input, Cloud asked the Board to authorize him to
execute duties related to the closing of two additional properties in the Hazard Mitigation Home
Buy-Out Program. Russell moved to authorize Cloud to perform these duties, De Freitas
seconded, and the motion thus carried. Cloud returned to the item brought up by Sandra Ford,
Bridge #49, and asked whether he should draft an agreement with Barnard formalizing the work.
The Board expressed that Cloud should proceed. Sandra Ford asked if residents would be asked
their opinion on access. After a brief discussion, Cloud offered to send her a copy of what he had
written pertaining to this matter.

Cloud and the Board noted the trainings offered by the Regional Planning Commission for
municipal officials on a variety of subjects, including conservation.

In Minutes and Communications, Hall asked for an edit to the May 6, 2013 Selectboard minutes.
Russell moved to accept the minutes with the changes discussed, De Freitas seconded, and the
motion was thus carried.

Cloud reported that the sign at the Town Hall is now up. The Board and Cloud agreed that the
Town Hall Committee should be asked for suggestions regarding the details of what gets posted,
and any matters pertaining to the use of the sign. De Freitas stated that there had been a ribbon-
cutting ceremony honoring George Burnham for creating the sign. Hall noted that there should
be a formal Town ribbon-cutting ceremony as well; date to be announced.



Cloud clarified the dates of upcoming agenda items. June 10 will consider junkyard regulations,
and the gravel pit shooting range; June 24, wastewater rates. The Town employee “cafeteria
plan” and Town Hall/Town Meeting issues to be discussed at a later date.

At his 7:00 p.m. appointment, John Fago spoke with the Board considering the location of a
Class 4 Road running between Christian Hill and Quarry Road. Fago and Cloud reported that
they had reviewed the historical record and found evidence in previous deeds that the road was
actually in a different location than where it is currently mapped. Fago requested that the map be
corrected to reflect this. Tim Mills of the Roads Committee was present and offered input in the
matter. The Board decided to follow the statutory process for realigning roads, even though this
IS not exactly what is requested in this case. The formal process includes warning a Public
Hearing and notifying property owners, lienholders, and abutters who might be affected by this
issue.

Cloud asked Mills about another Roads Committee matter, Old Stage Road, and Mills responded
that the Committee should be able to address this issue in the next two weeks.

Returning to Minutes and Communications, the Recreation Committee minutes were approved
(motion by Russell, seconded by De Freitas, Hall concurred). The Regional Planning
Commission minutes were reviewed. Bethel is still looking for a representative to the
commission.

In other business, Cloud and the Board reviewed the Vermont Digital Economy Project (VDEP)
updates, including the Wi-Fi in downtown Bethel; Abbie Sherman stated that it will be another
month before the “landing page” is up.

In the matter of the gravel pit/shooting range, Hall stated that it is their intention to address this
at the June 10 meeting. Hall has been in contact with Chris Saunders from the Department of
Fish and Wildlife. Hall would like it if Saunders’ team can visit the site and make
recommendations before that meeting.

Cloud noted the thorough set of notes written by Lisa Campbell, Chair of Parks and Public
Spaces, regarding their meeting to discuss and coordinate efforts at Peavine Park. Cloud also
reported that Green Mountain Power left some documents with Jean Burnham regarding an
easement, which needed the Board’s signatures. After a short discussion the Board signed the
document. The Board voted to authorize the Constable to impound or humanely destroy
unlicensed dogs in accordance with Town ordinance; Russell made the motion to approve, all
concurred, and the document was signed. Cloud brought for the Board’s review the request for
proposals for well drillers for the four properties in the Watershed Road area. Bids are due back
June 11.

Hall reported he had heard that the State has begun the Route 12 repaving project, beginning in
Northfield. Randolph is next, then Bethel. Russell noted that he had seen the guardrail taken off
in the Findley Bridge area, as had been discussed. Cloud said it would be further reconfigured
once work is done to the bridge. Russell brought it to the Board and Cloud’s attention that there
IS no stop sign at the intersection of Sanders Road and North Main Street. Russell will read the
ordinance on identifying stop/yield intersections and bring it up at a later meeting. Mary Floyd
stated that, according to a press release by Jim Ryan, there will be a public comment at the Town
Offices on June 6 to gather feedback regarding the Agency of Natural Resources’ draft White
River basin tactical water quality management plan. Sandra Ford asked that, as their road is now
considered Class 4, if there will be any maintenance. Cloud clarified that only Bridge #49 is
Class 4; everything else is still considered Class 3, and Class 3 roads are maintained (plowed in
the winter) by the Town.

Russell made a motion to adjourn the meeting, De Freitas seconded, and the meeting was
adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

Bill Hall Joe De Freitas Carl Russell



